


LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting 

City of Bloomington Utilities Building 

January 23rd, 2020 

6:00 p.m. 

 

The January 23rd, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting of the Lake Lemon Conservancy District was 

Held at the City of Bloomington Utilities Building and was called to order by Chairman Pam Dugan at 

6:00 PM. 

  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Pam Dugan, Vice-Chairman Mary Jane Brown, Treasurer Mike 

Blackwell, Michael Klitzing, Debra Ladyman, Les Wadzinski, Lora Schell.  ALSO PRESENT: Adam Casey, 

District Manager, Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor; and LLCD Freeholders (see attached sign-in 

sheet). 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (Dugan)               

 

II. Approval Board Meeting Minutes (Dugan) 

a. Dugan requested approval for the December 12th, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. 

 

SCHELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 12TH, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES WITH 

CORRECTIONS. BLACKWELL SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. BROWN AND LADYMAN ABSTAIN. 

THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

III. Treasurer’s Report (Blackwell) 

a. December Budget Highlights 

i. December Income: $136,599.91 

ii. December Expenditures: $137,041.48 

b. December Report of Claims: Approval of Allowance of Vouchers 

 

DUGAN MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE ALLOWANCE OF VOUCHERS FOR DECEMBER 2019 MOVING THE 

LAND PURCHASE TO SHOW AS A CAPITAL EXPENSE. BROWN SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. 

THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

a. Blackwell requested renewal for another 12-month term of CD# 371035576- Maturing 

on January 23rd, 2020. 

 

SCHELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE RENEWAL OF CD# 371035576 FOR A 12 MONTH TERM. WADZINSKI 

SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

b. Blackwell discussed a Cumulative Improvement Fund as an additional fund that can be 

used for improving and maintaining capital assets in the conservancy district. 



i. It could generate around $47,000.00 per year with a tax assessment not to 

exceed 3.33 cents per $100 of assessed value. 

 

DUGAN MOTIONED TO APPROVE MOVING FORWARD IN THE PROCESS OF STARTING THE 

CUMULATIVE IMPROVEMENT FUND. LADYMAN SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

IV. Manager’s Report (Casey) 

a. Casey informed the Board that both Mary Jane Brown (District III) and Les Wadzinski 

(District V) will run uncontested for another 4-year term starting February 2020. 

b. Casey requested approval to select an engineer for permitting not to exceed $25,000 

pending approval of Chairman Pam Dugan. 

 

BROWN MOTIONED TO APPROVE CASEY TO SELECT AN ENGINEER FOR PERMITTING NOT TO EXCEED 

$25,000.00 PENDING APPROVAL OF CHAIRMAN PAM DUGAN. WADZINSKI SECONDED THE MOTION. 

ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

c. Casey requested approval to apply to the State Revolving Fund. 

 

BROWN MOTIONED TO APPROVE CASEY TO APPLY TO THE STATE REVOLVING FUND FOR A $1.2 

MILLION UNCONTROLLED BOND. WADZINSKI SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

d. Casey presented a power point of design plans, size and layout, of a new gatehouse. 

e. Casey presented a change to the East End Lotus Maintenance Line moving it farther East 

to allow a better lake view for residents on the east side of Idalawn.  

 

BROWN MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE MOVING OF THE EAST END MAINTENANCE LINE. SCHELL 

SECONDED THE MOTION. KLITZING, BROWN, SCHELL, DUGAN, WADZINSKI “AYES”. BLACKWELL AND 

LADYMAN “NAYS”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

V. Strategic Planning Committee (Brown) 

a. Brown updated the board on the balances of the two County Lake Lemon Enhancement 

Funds.  

i. Brown: $19,628.34 

ii. Monroe: $8,906.00 

b. Brown discussed the future of the SPC and the possible disbanding. 

i. This discussion was tabled for the Annual Meeting. 

 

VI. Public Comment 

a. Kevin expressed the need to brief the public on current status and plan moving forward 

regarding the sediment management project.  



b. Cathy McClure discussed trademarking the LLCD logo.  This was tabled for the Annual 

Meeting. 

VII. New Business/ Correspondence for Future Agenda (Dugan) 

a. The LLCD Annual Meeting will take place on Thursday February 27th, 2020, 6:00pm, at 

the City of Bloomington Utilities Building. 

 

VIII. Adjournment 

 

SCHELL MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE January 23rd, 2020 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AT 7:55 P.M.  

BROWN SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”.  THE MOTION CARRIED.  MEETING ADJOURNED. 

  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:  

Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

City of Bloomington Utilities Building 
January 23, 2020 

6:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (PD) 
 
II. Approval of December 12, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (PD) 
 
III. Treasurer’s Report (MB) 

A. December Financial Highlights 
B. Report of Claims for December 2019 
C. CD Renewal: CD# 371035576 
D. Cumulative Improvement  Fund- Tax Assessment Discussion 

 
IV. Manager’s Report                                                                                                      (AC) 

A. Election: Update 
B. Hydraulic Dredging  Project: Land Use/Permitting  Update 
C. State Revolving Fund vs. Private Financing: Sediment Management Project 
D. East End Lotus Maintenance Line 
E. Gatehouse : Design Discussion 
F. Manager Appointed  Committees  

 
V. Strategic Planning Committee                                                                                 (MJB) 

A. Community Foundations- Year End Report 
B. SPC Meeting 01-10-20: Summary 
C. Future SPC Status Discussion 

 

VI. Public Comment (PD) 
 
VII. New Business / Correspondence for Future Agenda (PD) 

A. Annual Meeting, Thursday, February 27, 2019, 6:00 p.m. at the City of  
  Bloomington Utilities Building 

 
VIII. Adjournment  (PD) 
         (MM)          



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Pam Dugan, Chairman 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject December 12th, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date    January 23rd, 2020 

Summary 
 
 
 
 
 

A draft of the minutes for the December 12th, 
2019  Board Meeting Minutes is provided for 
Comment, Corrections, additions, or deletions. 

Staff Recommendation  Approval of the December 12th, 2019 Board 
meeting  minutes

  

 



LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting 

City of Bloomington Utilities Building 

December 12th, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 

 

The December 12th, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting of the Lake Lemon Conservancy District was 

Held at the City of Bloomington Utilities Building and was called to order by Chairman Pam Dugan at 

6:00 PM. 

  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Pam Dugan, Treasurer Mike Blackwell, Michael Klitzing, Les 

Wadzinski, Lora Schell.  ALSO PRESENT: Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor; and LLCD Freeholders 

(see attached sign-in sheet). ABSENT: Vice-Chairman Mary Jane Brown, Debra Ladyman, Adam Casey, 

District Manager. 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order / Chairman’s Remarks (Dugan)               

 

II. Approval Board Meeting Minutes (Dugan) 

a. Dugan requested approval for the October 31st, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. 

 

BLACKWELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 31ST, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES. SCHELL 

SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. DUGAN ABSTAINS. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

b. Dugan requested approval for the November 12th, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. 

 

BLACKWELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 12TH, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES. SCHELL 

SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. DUGAN ABSTAINS. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

III. Treasurer’s Report (Blackwell) 

a. October Budget Highlights 

i. October Income: $2,991.24 

ii. October Expenditures: $41,275.91 

b. November Budget Highlights 

i. November Income: $1,386.00 

ii. November Expenditures: $21,935.29 

c. October and November Report of Claims: Approval of Allowance of Vouchers 

DUGAN MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE ALLOWANCE OF VOUCHERS FOR OCTOBER AND NOVEMBER 

2019. SCHELL SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

d. Blackwell requested a transfer of $5,000.00 for the Cumulative Maintenance Fund to a 

Certificate of Deposit. 



SCHELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE TRANSFER OF $5,000.00 TO A CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT FOR THE 

CUMULATIVE MAINTENANCE FUND. DUGAN SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION 

CARRIED. 

e. Blackwell requested renewal for another 12-month term of CD# 371032722- Maturing 

on January 10th, 2020. 

SCHELL MOTIONED TO APPROVE RENEWAL OF CD# 371032722 FOR A 12 MONTH TERM. WADZINSKI 

SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

f. Blackwell requested approval for Casey to do a final transfer of funds as needed at the 

conclusion of Fiscal Year 2019. 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE CASEY TO DO A FINAL TRANSFER OF FUNDS AS NEEDED AT THE 

CONCLUSION OF FISCAL YEAR 2019. SCHELL SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

IV. Manager’s Report (Snooks) 

a. Snooks informed the Board that both Mary Jane Brown (District III) and Les Wadzinski 

(District V) will run uncontested for another 4-year term starting 2020. 

b. Snooks informed the board that on Tuesday December 3rd, 2019 on behalf of the board, 

Casey signed the title and purchased the property on South Shore Drive. 

c. Snooks updated the Board on the dredging totals for the year. 

i. The dredging team has dug 15,230 total cubic yards out of the lake this year, a 

record year. 

1. 6,211 yards out of zone 136 

2. 11,911 yards out of the Chitwood channels total 

d. Snooks requested a motion to approve the Job Description for the Equipment 

Operations Supervisor position.  

i. There were concerns brought up about vacation time, and exempt status. 

KLITZING MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS 

SUPERVISOR POSITION GIVING DISCRETION TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE FOR FINAL APPROVAL 

PENFDING EXEMPTION STATUS CHECK WITH FLSA GUIDELINES. BLACKWELL SECONDED THE MOTION. 

ALL “AYES”. THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 

V. Strategic Planning Committee (Dugan) 

a. Dugan updated the board on the balances of the two County Lake Lemon Enhancement 

Funds.  

i. Brown: $8,195.00 

ii. Monroe: $7,648.50 

 

VI. Public Comment 

a. Frank expressed his concerns about our work, or lack thereof, towards ADA compliance 

in the park.  He suggested the Parks Committee make a detailed and strategic plan with 

priorities towards ADA compliance. Suggestions included hiring an outside consultant 

for a park master plan. 



VII. New Business/ Correspondence for Future Agenda (Dugan) 

a. The Next Board Meeting will take place on Thursday January 23rd, 2020, 6:00pm, at the 

City of Bloomington Utilities Building. 

 

VIII. Adjournment 

 

SCHELL MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE DECEMBER 12TH, 2019 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AT 6:37 

P.M.  WADZINSKI SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL “AYE’S”.  THE MOTION CARRIED.  MEETING 

ADJOURNED. 

  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:  

Alex Snooks, Operations Supervisor 

 

 



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Review 

Item/Subject     December 2019 Financial Update 

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date    January 23rd, 2020 

Summary 
  

  
 
 
 

Financial report showing end of December 
2019  Balance sheet, Income, Expense, 2018 
comparison, and reconciliation data. 

Staff Recommendation N/A 

 























Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested Approval 

Item/Subject  December Report of Claims: Approval of Vouchers 

Dollar Amount $27,160.58 

Meeting Date    January 23rd, 2020 

Summary Report showing check detail and payroll expenditures
for December 2019 

Staff Recommendation  Approval of December 2019 Report of Claims 

 





Adam
Typewriter
New Prop- Pushboat



Adam
Typewriter
CX-80 Maintenance Supplies

Adam
Typewriter
Buddy Heater for push boat

Adam
Typewriter
Security Devices



Adam
Typewriter
Lower unit replacement Yamaha outboard small barge

Adam
Typewriter
New radios and broadcast tower

Adam
Typewriter
Cumulative Maintenance Fund- Transfer to CD

Adam
Typewriter
Total= $16,565.92







Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested  Motion to Renew CD# 371035576 

Item/Subject   CD Renewal: CD# 371035576   

Dollar Amount $17,983.14 

Meeting Date      January 23rd, 2020  

Summary 
   CD# 371035576 is maturing on January 23rd, 

2020.   

Staff Recommendation Renew this CD for another 12 month term. 

 



Adam
Typewriter
Renewal Rates 12 month- 1.40%18 month- 1.45%24 month- 1.50%                  



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Mike Blackwell, Treasurer 

Action Requested  Discussion: Cumulative Improvement  Fund 

Item/Subject   Cumulative Improvement Fund   

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date      January 23rd, 2020  

Summary 
   Discuss the process for starting a tax 

funded Cumulative Improvement Fund.  

Staff Recommendation N/A  

 



STATE OF INDIANA 

  
 

Page 1 of 8 

INDIANA GOVERNMENT CENTER NORTH 
100 NORTH SENATE AVENUE N1058(B) 

INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204 
PHONE (317) 232-3777 

FAX (317) 974-1629 

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE 
 

TO:  All Political Subdivisions 
 
FROM: Fred Van Dorp, Budget Division Director 
 
SUBJECT: Procedures for the Establishment and Reestablishment of Cumulative Funds 
 
DATE: February 8, 2019 
 
The Department of Local Government Finance (“Department”) issues this memorandum, which 
applies to the following Cumulative Funds established under the procedures outlined in IC 6-1.1-
41, and which supersedes all previous memoranda on the subject. This memo does not take the 
place of Indiana law. The Department and all local units of government are bound to due dates 
and responsibilities as outlined in law. In the event any part of this memorandum conflicts with 
Indiana law, Indiana law governs.  
 
A political subdivision (“unit”) desiring a new cumulative fund or to increase the property tax 
rate for an existing cumulative fund must establish or reestablish the fund. The unit may only 
establish or reestablish a cumulative fund for which it has authority to establish under the statutes 
referenced at the end of this memorandum in Table 1. Templates for each step may be found in 
the companion document with this memo. 
 
All units seeking to establish or reestablish a cumulative fund with the Department must submit 
the following documents. Email the documents to the Budget Division Director Fred Van Dorp 
at fvandorp@dlgf.in.gov by April 30, 2019. 
 

1. Procedure Checklist.  
o The checklist can be found in Appendix A of the companion document. 

2. Adopted resolution/ordinance of adopting body. 
o The resolution/ordinance template can be found in Appendix B of the companion 

document. 
3. Proofs of publication, and proofs of posting, if required, of the Notice to Taxpayers.  

o Clipping from the newspaper(s) would suffice if the proofs are not yet available. 
4. Proofs of publication, and proofs of posting, if required, of the Notice of Adoption.  

o Clipping from the newspaper(s) would suffice if the proofs are not yet available. 
5. County auditor’s Certificate of No Remonstrance. 

o Additional information related to the submitting the Certificate of No 
Remonstrance can be found in Step 4. 

6. Any other relevant documentation. 
o Information that would be helpful to the Department during its review process. 
 

 

mailto:fvandorp@dlgf.in.gov


 
 

Page 2 of 8 

Questions regarding this memorandum or matters pertaining to the establishment of a cumulative 
fund should be directed to your Department budget field representative. Budget field 
representative contact information may be found at http://www.in.gov/dlgf/2338.htm. 
 
The foregoing pages go into greater detail on how to establish or reestablish a cumulative fund.  
 
In addition to complying with the budget, tax rate, and tax levy requirements of IC 6-1.1-17, the 
following steps must be taken when establishing a cumulative fund or increasing the rate of an 
established fund. If the establishment of a fund is not in compliance with IC 6-1.1-41, a tax to 
finance the fund may not be levied in the ensuing year. 
 
STEP 1: PUBLICATION OF NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS 
The hearing must be publicized through a Notice to Taxpayers in accordance with IC 5-3-1-2(f). 
The hearing must describe the tax levy to be imposed and must be published two times, at least 
seven days apart, with the first publication being at least ten days before the public hearing and 
the second publication at least three days before the public hearing. Appendix B contains a 
template for this notice.  
 
If the fund is for a Cumulative Voting System (IC 3-11-6) or Cumulative Channel Maintenance 
(IC 8-10-5-17), notice of the proposal and the public hearing must also be posted in three public 
places within the unit. 
 
STEP 2: PUBLIC HEARING & ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE 
The adopting body for the unit must conduct a public hearing on the proposed cumulative fund 
on the date, time, and location as indicated in the Notice to Taxpayers. At this hearing, taxpayers 
of the affected taxing district(s) have the right to be heard. Subsequent to the public hearing, the 
adopting body can vote to pass a resolution/ordinance adopting the proposed cumulative fund 
and rate as presented, or at a lower tax rate. Appendices C & C(2) contain appropriate templates 
for this notice. 
 
Units should pay close attention to whether the enabling statute requires the unit’s fiscal body or 
legislative body to establish a cumulative fund. Generally, the county commissioners establish a 
county cumulative capital development fund and a cumulative bridge fund.  
 
STEP 3: PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ADOPTION 
The unit must publish a Notice of Adoption to the affected taxpayers. Appendix D contains a 
template for this notice. The unit must publish the Notice of Adoption one time within 30 days 
after the date of the adoption in two newspapers published within the unit, as applicable, in 
accordance with IC 5-3-1-4. If the fund is for a Cumulative Voting System (IC 3-11-6) or 
Cumulative Channel Maintenance (IC 8-10-5), the notice must also be posted in three public 
places in the political subdivision.  
 
The publication of this Notice begins a 30-day remonstrance period for the taxpayers affected by 
the cumulative fund. Taxpayers who are affected by the proposed cumulative fund may file an 
objection petition with the county auditor, not later than noon 30 days after the publication of the 
Notice of Adoption, setting forth their objections to the proposed fund. Pursuant to IC 6-1.1-41-

http://www.in.gov/dlgf/2338.htm


 
 

Page 3 of 8 

6, the number of signatures required for a valid objection petition is specific to each type of 
cumulative fund can be found in Table 2 at the end of this memo.  
 
Exceptions to the 30-day remonstrance period are limited to the Cumulative Building and Capital 
Improvement Fund (IC 36-9-16-5) and the Cumulative Building for Hospitals Fund (IC 16-22-5-
4). Only these two funds require a ten-day remonstrance period. 
 
Pursuant to IC 6-1.1-41-3(e), the Department prescribes the manner in which the Notice of 
Adoption must be published. Not following the prescribed template or providing a statement of 
purpose for the Fund will be grounds for denial of the proposal. 
 
The county auditor must immediately certify the objection petition(s) to the Department by 
verifying all of the following: 

1. The number of taxpayers on the petition and counterparts who are property owners within 
the taxing district(s) where the proposed cumulative fund will be levied. 

2. The proper number of qualified signatures appears on the petition and counterparts. 
3. The petition(s) was filed within the proper number of days after the publication of the 

Notice of Adoption. 
 
If a petition is certified by the county auditor to the Department, the Department must fix a date 
for a hearing within a reasonable time after receipt of the objection. Notice of the hearing, under 
the signature of the Commissioner of the Department, must be given to the county auditor and 
the first ten taxpayers whose names appear on the petition at least five days before the date of the 
hearing. A hearing will be conducted in the county by a hearing officer of the Department, at 
which time all affected taxpayers will have the right to be heard. Testimony will be accepted 
from those in opposition to, as well as those in favor of, the proposed cumulative fund. The 
hearing officer will submit a report on the hearing to the Commissioner. The Department must 
certify approval, disapproval, or modification of the proposal to the county auditor. The action of 
the Department with respect to the proposed fund is final. 
 
In the years following the year of adoption of the cumulative fund, and pursuant to IC 6-1.1-41-
12, taxpayers of the taxing district(s) where the rate is levied may file with the county auditor a 
petition for reduction or revision of the cumulative fund levy. Such petitions must be filed by 
noon of August 1 of the year following the imposition of the levy.  
 
STEP 4: SUBMISSION TO THE DEPARTMENT  
A unit that adopts a proposed cumulative fund pursuant to IC 6-1.1-41 must submit the proposal 
to the Department for approval on or before April 30 (postmarked not later than April 30) of the 
year preceding the year in which the proposed levy takes effect. The following must be 
submitted to the Department: 
 

• Procedure Checklist (see Appendix A). 
• Adopted resolution/ordinance of adopting body (Appendix C). 

o Appendix C(2) is to be used for establishing an Equipment Replacement Fund. 
• Proofs of publication (and proofs of posting, if required) of the Notice to Taxpayers (a 

clipping from the newspaper(s) would suffice if the proofs are not yet available). 



 
 

Page 4 of 8 

• Proofs of publication (and proofs of posting, if required) of the Notice of Adoption (a 
clipping from the newspaper(s) would suffice if the proofs are not yet available), if 
available*. 

• County auditor’s Certificate of No Remonstrance, when available**. 
• Any other relevant documentation. 

 
*In order for the proposal to be complete, the Department must be able to determine whether a 
Notice of Adoption was properly published. Thus, a unit must at least have properly published a 
Notice of Adoption on or before April 30. Proofs of publication of this Notice, if available, must 
be included with the proposal. If proofs of publication are not available on or before April 30, a 
newspaper clipping of the actual Notice will suffice (the clipping should also clearly show the 
date and name of the newspaper). Failure to adequately document that a Notice of Adoption was 
published on or before April 30 will result in denial of the proposal.  
 
**While IC 5-3-1-2(i) requires a Notice to be published within 30 days of the date of adoption, 
IC 6-1.1-41-4 requires that a proposal be submitted to the Department on or before April 30. This 
means that although a unit can potentially advertise a Notice of Adoption 30 days from the date 
of adoption, publication of this Notice must still occur on or before April 30. Thus, a unit that 
adopts a cumulative fund in mid-April will not have a full 30 days to publish the Notice of 
Adoption. Moreover, the proposal must include the Auditor’s Certificate of No Remonstrance if 
the end of the remonstrance period occurs on or before April 30. A unit may submit a Certificate 
of No Remonstrance after the April 30 deadline under the following conditions: 

• The Notice of Adoption was published before April 30. 
• The remonstrance period cannot end on or before April 30. 
• All of the other required documents have been submitted to the Department on or before 

April 30. 
 
Please note that newspaper clippings, including those provided in proofs of publication, should 
contain all the information necessary to show compliance with the publication requirements. 
Providing clippings that do not clearly show this information may result in delay in the review of 
the fund or rejection of the clipping as evidence of compliance. The Department therefore offers 
the following guidelines: 

• The clipping should clearly show the date and name of the newspaper.  
• For proofs of publication, the publication dates should be clearly visible on the affidavit, 

itself (i.e., not covered over by the clipping, if the proof is scanned or copied).  
• The whole text of the notice should also be legible (i.e., if the notice is scanned or copied 

it should not come out blurry or have portions of it cut off).  
• Clippings that are illegible or contain only a part of the notice will be regarded as 

incomplete evidence of proper publication and will be grounds for correction by the unit 
or, if correction is not possible or not attempted, denial of the fund. 

 
STEP 5: REVIEW BY THE DEPARTMENT 
The proposal will be reviewed by the Department for completeness. If the proposal contains 
errors or proper procedure has not been followed, the packet will be returned to the fiscal officer 
of the adopting unit for correction. If correction is not possible, such as if a resubmission cannot 
occur on or before April 30, the Department will issue a denial of the fund. 



 
 

Page 5 of 8 

STEP 6: INCLUDING THE CUMULATIVE FUND IN THE UNIT’S BUDGET 
An approved cumulative fund may be levied beginning with the first annual tax levy imposed 
following approval of the proposal or in the year stated in the Department’s order. Cumulative 
funds, with the exception of the Cumulative Building or Cumulative Capital Improvement Fund 
under IC 36-9-16-4, do not expire and may be levied from year to year as long as they are 
advertised annually with the annual budget or are not time-limited by the establishing 
resolution/ordinance.1 Please note that if a unit adopts a rate for a cumulative fund as part 
of its budget adoption that is less than the rate at which the fund had been initially 
established, the unit will be held to that lesser rate the following year unless the unit 
reestablishes the fund at a higher rate. Again, to levy a tax in 2020, the fund must be 
properly adopted in 2019 and the petition timely submitted to the Department in 2019 (a 
unit seeking to levy a cumulative fund tax starting in 2021 should not adopt the cumulative 
fund until 2020). 
 
If the appropriate fiscal body wishes to increase the rate in subsequent years, the fund must be 
reestablished and presented to taxpayers (a unit establishing a municipal or county cumulative 
development fund may adopt three years’ rates upon establishment of such fund). The fund must 
also be reestablished if the use of the cumulative fund is changed. The tax rate may not exceed 
the rate specified by the statute authorizing the fund. The Department will apply the rate cap 
calculations to all cumulative funds as listed in this bulletin. The maximum property tax rate 
levied must be adjusted each time a reassessment or annual adjustment of property values take 
effect. When a cumulative fund is established, the Department order will reflect the (statutory) 
rate approved by the Department. The Budget Order will reflect the cap rate adjustment pursuant 
to IC 6-1.1-18.5-9.8. 
 
Additional Guidance on Cumulative Funds 
Taxes collected for a cumulative fund must be deposited in that same fund and may only be used 
for the purposes authorized by the corresponding statute and the resolution/ordinance as adopted. 
All funds must be appropriated before expenditure. The Department must approve all 
appropriations, except for those involving the Cumulative Bridge Fund or Cumulative Levee 
Fund. Appropriations may be included in the unit’s annual budget or may be performed through 
the additional appropriation process under IC 6-1.1-18-5. Levies and rates, however, must be 
approved in the annual budget process. 

 
If the unit establishing the fund decides that the need for which the fund was established has 
been satisfied or no longer exists or the unit rescinds the tax levy for the fund, the fiscal body 
shall, pursuant to IC 36-1-8-5, order the balance of the fund to be transferred as follows, unless a 
statute provides that it be transferred otherwise. 

(1) Funds of a county, to the general fund or rainy day fund of the county. 
(2) Funds of a municipality, to the general fund or rainy day fund of the municipality. 
(3) Funds of a township for redemption of township assistance obligations, to the township 

assistance fund of the township or rainy day fund of the township. 
(4) Funds of any other political subdivision, to the general fund or rainy day fund of the 

political subdivision.  
 
                                                           
1 Cumulative funds established under IC 16-22-5-2 and IC 16-23-1-40 also expire by statute, but they are not governed by IC 6-1.1-41. 



 
 

Page 6 of 8 

State Board of Accounts (“SBOA”) has taken the position that transfers from cumulative funds 
are governed by specific statutory language and SBOA would take exception to cumulative 
funds under IC 6-1.1-41 being transferred to the rainy day fund. SBOA would not take exception 
to the transfer of funds if the purpose for which the fund was established had been accomplished, 
the need for the fund no longer existed, or the unit rescinded the tax levy. 
 
The Fire Protection Territory Equipment Replacement Fund is subject to both IC 36-8-19-8.5 
and IC 6-1.1-41. Thus, the legislative bodies of each participating unit must adopt an ordinance 
(if the unit is a county or municipality) or a resolution (if the unit is a township), and the 
following requirements must be met: 

(1) The ordinance or resolution is identical to the ordinances and resolutions adopted by the 
other participating units. 

(2) Before adopting the ordinance or resolution, each participating unit must comply with the 
notice and hearing requirements of IC 6-1.1-41-3. 

(3) The ordinance or resolution authorizes the provider unit to establish the fund. 
(4) The ordinance or resolution includes at least the following: 

a. The name of each participating unit and the provider unit. 
b. An agreement to impose a uniform tax rate upon all of the taxable property 

 within the territory for the equipment replacement fund. 
c. The contents of the agreement to establish the fund. 

(5) A Notice of Adoption is published in accordance with IC 5-3-1-4, which begins a 30-day 
remonstrance period. 

(6) Objection petitions are processed as described on pages 2 and 3 of this Memorandum. 
(7) All materials are submitted to the Department on or before April 30. 

 
See IC 36-8-19-8.5 for more information. Appendix C(2) features a template 
ordinance/resolution. 
 
Before a Cumulative Firefighting Building and Equipment Fund may be established by a Fire 
Protection District, the county legislative body that appoints the trustees of the District must 
approve the establishment of the fund. Proof of this approval must be included with the District’s 
proposal and submitted to the Department by April 30. 
  



 
 

Page 7 of 8 

Table 1: Statutory Authority for Common Cumulative Funds  
 
Fund         Statutory Authority 
Cumulative Voting System Fund     Ind. Code § 3-11-6-9 
Cumulative Channel Maintenance Fund    Ind. Code § 8-10-5-17 
Cumulative Bridge Fund      Ind. Code § 8-16-3 
Major Bridge Fund       Ind. Code § 8-16-3.1 
Airport Cumulative Building Fund     Ind. Code § 8-22-3-25 
Cumulative Levee Fund (Vanderburgh Co.)    Ind. Code § 14-27-6-48 
Cumulative Improvement Fund     Ind. Code § 14-33-21 
Cumulative Hospital Sinking Fund     Ind. Code § 16-22-4 
Cumulative Hospital Fund      Ind. Code § 16-22-8-41 
Cumulative Firefighting Building and Equipment Fund2  Ind. Code § 36-8-14 
Cumulative Transportation Fund     Ind. Code § 36-9-4-48 
Cumulative Courthouse Fund      Ind. Code § 36-9-14 
County Cumulative Capital Development Fund   Ind. Code § 36-9-14.5 
Cumulative Jail Fund       Ind. Code § 36-9-15 
Municipal Cumulative Capital Development Fund   Ind. Code § 36-9-15.5 
Cumulative Building, Sinking, or Capital Improvement Fund Ind. Code § 36-9-16-5 & 6 
Cumulative General Improvement Fund    Ind. Code § 36-9-17-3 
Cumulative Township Vehicle and Building Fund   Ind. Code § 36-9-17.5 
Cumulative Building Fund for Municipal Sewers   Ind. Code § 36-9-26 
Cumulative Drainage Fund      Ind. Code § 36-9-27-99 
Cumulative Park Fund (County and Municipality)   Ind. Code § 36-10-3-21 
Cumulative Park Fund (Certain Cities)    Ind. Code § 36-10-4 
Township Park and Recreation Cumulative Building Fund  Ind. Code § 36-10-7.5-19 
Fire Protection Territory Equipment Replacement Fund3  Ind. Code § 36-8-19-8.5  
  

                                                           
2 Before this fund may be established by a Fire Protection District, the county legislative body that appoints the trustees of the District must 
approve the establishment of the fund. 
3 The process for establishing a Fire Protection Territory Equipment Replacement Fund is governed by both IC 36-8-19-8.5 and IC 6-1.1-41. 



 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 
Table 2: Minimum Number of taxpayers required to file a remonstrance 
 
Fund          Minimum Number of Taxpayers 
Cumulative Voting System Fund     Ind. Code § 3-11-6  100 
Cumulative Channel Maintenance Fund   Ind. Code § 8-10-5-17  10 
Cumulative Bridge Fund     Ind. Code § 8-16-3-1  10 
Major Bridge Fund      Ind. Code § 8-16-3.1-4 10 
Airport Cumulative Fund     Ind. Code § 8-22-3-25  50 
Cumulative Levee Fund (Vanderburgh Co.)   Ind. Code § 14-27-6-48 10 
Cumulative Improvement Fund    Ind. Code § 14-33-21-2 10 
Cumulative Hospital Sinking Fund    Ind. Code § 16-22-4-1  20 
Cumulative Hospital Fund     Ind. Code § 16-22-8-41 50 
Cumulative Fire Fund      Ind. Code § 36-8-14-2  10 
Cumulative Transportation Fund    Ind. Code § 36-9-4-48  10 
Cumulative Courthouse Fund     Ind. Code § 36-9-14  50 
Cumulative Capital Development (County Unit)  Ind. Code § 36-9-14.5  50 
Cumulative Jail Fund      Ind. Code § 36-9-15  50 
Cumulative Capital Development (Municipality)  Ind. Code § 36-9-15.5  50 
Cumulative Building and Capital Improvement Fund Ind. Code § 36-9-16  50 
Cumulative General Improvement Fund   Ind. Code § 36-9-17  50 
Cumulative Township Vehicle and Building Fund  Ind. Code § 36-9-17.5  50 
Cumulative Bldg. Fund for Municipal Sewers  Ind. Code § 36-9-26  50 
Cumulative Drainage Fund     Ind. Code § 36-9-27-99 50 
Cumulative Park Fund (County and Municipality)  Ind. Code § 36-10-3-21 30 
Cumulative Park Fund (Certain Cities)   Ind. Code § 36-10-4-36 10 
Township Cumulative Park Fund    Ind. Code § 36-10-7.5 -19 30 
Fire Protection Territory Equipment Replacement Fund Ind. Code § 36-8-19-8.5 10 



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter Adam Casey, District Manager 

Action Requested  Approve 2020 Proposed lotus Maintenance Line 

Item/Subject   East End Lotus Maintenance Line   

Dollar Amount N/A  

Meeting Date      January 23rd, 2020  

Summary 
   Proposed 2020 Vegetation Maintenance Line

  

Staff Recommendation Approve the Proposed 2020 Vegetation Maintenance 
line for permit submittal to DNR

 

 



★
MN

4°37'

Proposed Maintenance lines

Current Maintenance Line

Lake Lemon 2020 Proposed Maintenance Lines

250 ft



Lake Lemon Conservancy District 

Board Meeting Agenda Item 

 

 

 

Presenter  Mary Jane Brown, Vice- Chairman 

Action Requested Review 

Item/Subject SPC Minutes 1-10-20   

Dollar Amount N/A 

Meeting Date     January 23rd, 2020 

Summary  Minutes from SPC Meeting 01-10-20
 

Staff Recommendation N/ A  

 



Strategic Planning Committee Meeting 
Friday January 10th, 2020 at 3:30pm 

LLCD Office 
 

 
 

1. Lake Health - Hydraulic dredging RFI discussion and Merrell Bro’s. site visit recap  
a. Adam updated everyone that Merrell Bro’s cancelled due to the size of their 

operation. 
b. Adam sent draft RFI’s to the Lake Heath task group to read over. 

i. We will need permits for the land on South Shore and the overflow pond 
on the long causeway. 

ii. We will need to send out requests for bids for the project. 
iii. We will need to submit applications to use the land and the overflow 

pond as disposal sites. 
iv. We will need a low-cost design for a settling pond on the South Shore 

land. 
v. If we acquire funds through the SRF we could potentially start the project 

in April. 
vi. Adam is still in talks with People’s State Bank for a commercial loan 

route. 
2. Park and Recreation - Master plan RFI’s and Gatehouse Discussion  

a. Adam updated everyone that the Master plan RFI’s are out to all of the people 
recommended by Michael Klitzing and Mike Blackwell.  

i. One has already responded with questions about our goals. 
ii. All are due back by the 20th of January. 

b. Adam updated everyone that there are 3-4 potential local companies to bid out 
building the new Gatehouse. 

i. Alex and Adam drew up a draft design. 
ii. Adam sent it to Russ Herndon, who will meet with us next week to 

discuss potential alterations and improvements. 
iii. Adam spoke with the CBU and they are on board with rebuilding the 

Gatehouse. 
iv. Adam will have a Bid document ready to be sent out next week. 

3. Charitable Giving - Year End Contribution Report 
a. Cathy updated everyone on a Year-end incentive she made to get more 

donations. 
i. The community funds received $7,983.00 from this promotion. 

ii. Brown County balance is now $19,628.34 
iii. Monroe County balance is now $8,906.00 

b. Adam and Cathy discussed having a Spring fundraising event like a concert or 
similar. 

c. Cathy presented an idea to create a “Welcome Packet” for realtors to give out to 
their clients that are new to the lake. 



i. The packet would have specific instructions to contact the office so we 
could update the information quicker in the database and have better 
community involvement. 

d. Cathy also presented an idea to create a Lake Lemon Directory with local 
commercial sponsors, that would also try to build the community. 

4. Committee, Task Group discussion 
a. Mary Jane presented an idea to slowly transition to all Manager Task groups and 

have less and less SPC meetings. 
i. This would allow for more thorough board involvement and more 

focused task group meetings. 
ii. We would transform the board meetings to a consent agenda and allow 

more time for the task groups to present their findings and ideas to the 
board as a whole. 

iii. We could possibly have quarterly public meetings for the task groups so 
that more people could know the big picture in case they are unable to 
attend board meetings. 

 
5. The next meeting will be held Friday February 14th, 2020 at 3:30 pm in the LLCD office. 

 
 


	December 2019 AOV.pdf
	November Allowance of vouchers.pdf
	Untitled

	Untitled

	1Agenda January 23, 2020.doc.pdf
	LAKE LEMON CONSERVANCY DISTRICT
	AGENDA
	Bloomington Utilities Building






